# TABLE OF CONTENTS PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED **FINANCIAL POSITION** CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH **FLOWS** CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS PART II — OTHER INFORMATION Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K **SIGNATURE EXHIBIT INDEX** Exhibit 27 News Release EX-99.A SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 **FORM 10-Q** QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2000 OR TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the transition period from Commission File Number: 1-8944 CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) Ohio 34-1464672 (State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer incorporation) Identification No.) 1100 Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44114-2589 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (216) 694-5700 Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

YES X NO \_\_\_\_

As of October 20, 2000, there were 10,292,356 Common Shares (par value \$1.00 per share) outstanding.

**Table of Contents** 

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

	Three Months Ended September 30		Nine Months Ended September 30					
	20	000		1999		2000		1999
REVENUES							-	
Product sales and services	\$ 1	29.2	\$	80.2	\$	269.6	\$	176.7
Royalties and management fees		15.0		10.3	_	39.6		33.0
Total Operating Revenues	1	44.2		90.5		309.2		209.7
Insurance recovery		.3				15.3		
Interest income		1.2		.5		3.4		2.4
Other income		1.9		.8		4.0		2.4
Total Revenues	1	47.6		91.8		331.9		214.5
COSTS AND EXPENSES								
Cost of goods sold and operating expenses	1	27.4		100.5		269.6		191.1
Administrative, selling and general expenses		5.9		3.3		14.2		11.2
Write-down of common stock investment		1.1				10.2		
Equity loss in Cliffs and Associates Limited		3.9		2.4		11.0		5.8
Interest expense		1.2		1.2		3.7		2.4
Other expenses		1.3	_	.9	_	5.1	_	6.2
<b>Total Costs and Expenses</b>	1	40.8	_	108.3	_	313.8	_	216.7
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES		6.8		(16.5)		18.1		(2.2)
INCOME TAXES (CREDIT)		.5		(5.8)		4.3		(2.0)
NET INCOME (LOSS)	\$	6.3	\$_	(10.7)	\$	13.8	\$_	(.2)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE								
Basic	\$	.60	\$	(.96)	\$	1.31	\$	(.02)
Diluted	\$	.60	\$	(.96)	\$	1.31	\$	(.02)
AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES (IN THOUSANDS)				` '				` ′
Basic	10	,352		11,112		10,501		11,160
Diluted	10	,391		11,112		10,532		11,160

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2

# **Table of Contents**

# CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

# STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

	(In Millions)		
	September 30 2000	December 31 1999	
ASSETS			
CURRENT ASSETS			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 49.6	\$ 67.6	
Accounts receivable — net	71.8	82.6	
Inventories			
Iron ore	73.0	36.6	
Supplies and other	15.6	16.0	
	88.6	52.6	
Other	21.1	14.3	
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	231.1	217.1	
PROPERTIES	229.4	224.0	
Allowances for depreciation and depletion	(79.3)	(70.1)	
TOTAL PROPERTIES	150.1	153.9	
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES	224.7	233.4	

OTHER ASSETS				
Prepaid pensions		40.7		40.8
Miscellaneous		39.5		34.5
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS	_	80.2	_	75.3
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	686.1	\$	679.7
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	_			
CURRENT LIABILITIES	\$	85.5	\$	73.7
LONG-TERM DEBT		70.0		70.0
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITIES		67.1		68.1
OTHER LIABILITIES		58.8		60.6
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Preferred Stock				
Class A — no par value				
Authorized - 500,000 shares; Issued — none		_		_
Class B — no par value				
Authorized - 4,000,000 shares; Issued — none				
Common Shares — par value \$1 a share				
Authorized - 28,000,000 shares;				
Issued - 16,827,941 shares		16.8		16.8
Capital in excess of par value of shares		67.1		67.1
Retained income		503.2		501.3
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax				(5.2)
Cost of 6,535,585 Common Shares in treasury				
(1999 - 6,180,742 shares)		(180.3)		(171.5)
Unearned compensation		(2.1)		(1.2)
•			_	
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY		404.7		407.3
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	<b>\$</b>	686.1	\$	679.7
	_		_	

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

**Table of Contents** 

# CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

# STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

(In Millions,

	(In Millions, Brackets Indicate Cash Decrease) Nine Months Ended September 30	
	2000	1999
OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Net income (loss)	\$ 13.8	\$ (.2)
Depreciation and amortization:		
Consolidated	9.6	7.2
Share of associated companies	9.4	9.1
Equity loss in Cliffs and Associates Limited	11.0	5.8
Write-down of common stock investment	10.2	
Deferred income taxes	(4.1)	(1.1)
Other	.9	(3.7)
Total before changes in operating assets and liabilities	50.8	17.1
Changes in operating assets and liabilities	(24.8)	(71.7)
Net cash from (used by) operating activities INVESTING ACTIVITIES	26.0	(54.6)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment:		
Consolidated	(5.4)	(12.2)
Share of associated companies	(4.1)	(4.0)
Investment and advances in Cliffs and Associates Limited	(11.3)	(8.6)
Other	.5	
Net cash used by investing activities FINANCING ACTIVITIES	(20.3)	(24.8)
Dividends	(11.9)	(12.6)

Repurchases of Common Shares	(11.8)	(5.2)
Net cash used by financing activities	(23.7)	(17.8)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD	(18.0) 67.6	(97.2) 130.3
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD	\$ 49.6	\$ 33.1

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

4

**Table of Contents** 

# CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# **SEPTEMBER 30, 2000**

# NOTE A — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and should be read in conjunction with the financial statement footnotes and other information in the Company's 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K. In management's opinion, the quarterly unaudited consolidated financial statements present fairly the Company's financial position and results in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

References to the "Company" mean Cleveland-Cliffs Inc and consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated. Quarterly results historically are not representative of annual results due to seasonal and other factors. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year classifications.

# NOTE B — ACCOUNTING AND DISCLOSURE CHANGES

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 101, "Revenue Recognition," which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation, and disclosure of revenue in financial statements filed with the SEC. SAB No. 101, as amended, which is effective for year-end December 31, 2000 financial statements, is not expected to have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In March, 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation." The Interpretation provides guidance on certain implementation issues related to Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 on accounting for stock issued to employees. The Interpretation, which is effective July 1, 2000, did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In March 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("EITF") indicated in Topic No. D-88, "Planned Major

5

# **Table of Contents**

Maintenance Activities" that companies are required to disclose their accounting policy for repair and maintenance costs incurred with planned major maintenance activities. The Company amortizes the cost of power plant major overhauls over the estimated useful life, which is generally the period until the next scheduled overhaul. Other planned maintenance costs are expensed during the year incurred.

# NOTE C — ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVES

At September 30, 2000, the Company had an environmental reserve, including its share of ventures, of \$19.8 million, of which \$4.4 million was classified as current. The reserve includes the Company's obligations related to Federal and State Superfund and Clean Water Act sites

where the Company is named as a potentially responsible party, including Cliffs-Dow and Kipling sites in Michigan, the Summitville site in Colorado and the Rio Tinto mine site in Nevada, all of which sites are independent of the Company's iron mining operations. Reserves are based on Company estimates and engineering studies prepared by outside consultants engaged by the potentially responsible parties. The Company continues to evaluate the recommendations of the studies and other means for site clean-up. Significant site clean-up activities have taken place at Rio Tinto and Cliffs-Dow. Also provided for in the reserve are wholly-owned active and closed mining operations, and other sites, including former operations, for which reserves are based on the Company's estimated cost of investigation and remediation.

## NOTE D — COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	(In Millions)				
	Third Quarter		First Nine	Months	
	2000	1999	2000	1999	
Net Income (Loss) Other Comprehensive Income -	\$ 6.3	\$ (10.7)	\$ 13.8	\$ (.2)	
Unrealized Loss on Securities Reclassification Adjustment for		(.6)	(1.2)	(.2)	
Loss Included in Net Income			6.4		
Comprehensive Income (Loss)	\$ 6.3	\$ (11.3)	\$ 19.0	\$ (.4)	

In the second quarter, the Company recorded a \$6.4 million after-tax charge to earnings to reflect an other than temporary decline in the value of its long-term equity investment in a publicly-traded common stock. Changes in the market value in the investment had previously been charged to other comprehensive income and reflected in shareholders' equity. In August 2000, the Company commenced the sale of this investment, reclassified it to "trading," and is currently recognizing all holding gains and losses in earnings.

# NOTE E — SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has two reportable segments offering different iron products and services to the steel industry. Iron Ore is the Company's dominant segment. The Ferrous Metallics segment consists of the hot briquetted iron ("HBI") venture project in

6

# **Table of Contents**

Trinidad and Tobago and other developmental activities. "Other" includes non-reportable segments, the insurance claim recovery, the long-term investment writedown of publicly-traded common stock, and unallocated corporate administrative expense and other income and expense.

	(In Millions)				
	Iron Ore	Ferrous Metallics	Segments Total	Other	Consolidated Total
Third Quarter 2000					
Sales and services to external customers Royalties and management fees	\$129.2 15.0	\$	\$ 129.2 15.0	\$	\$ 129.2 15.0
Total operating revenues	144.2		144.2	_	144.2
Income (loss) before taxes Equity loss*	16.2	(4.4) (3.9)	11.8 (3.9)	(5.0)	6.8 (3.9)
Investments in associated companies Other identifiable assets	140.5 435.6	84.2 2.6	224.7 438.2	23.2	224.7 462.4
Total assets	576.1	86.8	662.9	23.2	686.1
Third Quarter 1999					
Sales and services to external customers Royalties and management fees	\$ 80.2 10.3	\$	\$ 80.2 10.3	\$	\$ 80.2 10.3
Total operating revenues	90.5		90.5	_	90.5
Income (loss) before taxes Equity loss*	(17.2)	(2.9) (2.4)	(20.1) (2.4)	3.6	(16.5) (2.4)

Investments in associated companies Other identifiable assets	151.3 428.1	77.9 6.7	229.2 434.8	24.9	229.2 459.7
Total assets	579.4	84.6	664.0	24.9	688.9
First Nine Months 2000 Sales and services to external customers Royalties and management fees	\$269.6 39.6	\$	\$ 269.6 39.6	\$	\$ 269.6 39.6
Total operating revenues	309.2	_	309.2	_	309.2
Income (loss) before taxes Equity loss*	38.6	(12.5) (11.0)	26.1 (11.0)	(8.0)	18.1 (11.0)
First Nine Months 1999 Sales and services to external customers Royalties and management fees  Total operating revenues	\$176.7 33.0 209.7	\$	\$ 176.7 33.0 209.7	\$	\$ 176.7 33.0 
Income (loss) before taxes Equity loss*	9.1	(8.2) (5.8)	.9 (5.8)	(3.1)	(2.2) (5.8)

<sup>\*</sup> Included in income (loss) before taxes.

7

## **Table of Contents**

# MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

## COMPARISON OF THIRD QUARTER AND FIRST NINE MONTHS 2000 AND 1999

Net income for the third quarter of 2000 was \$6.3 million, or \$.60 per diluted share (references to per share net income are "diluted net income per share"), and first nine months net income was \$13.8 million, or \$1.31 per share. Net income for the first nine months included a \$9.9 million after-tax recovery on an insurance claim related to lost 1999 sales, and a \$6.6 million after-tax charge to earnings to recognize the decrease in value of the Company's investment in publicly-traded common stock. Excluding the two special items, first nine months net income was \$10.5 million, or \$1.00 per share.

Net loss in 1999 was \$10.7 million, \$.96 per share in the third quarter, and \$.2 million, or \$.02 per share in the first nine months, including favorable after-tax income adjustments of \$1.6 million in the quarter and \$4.4 million year-to-date that mainly related to refunds of prior years' state taxes.

Following is a summary of results:

(In	Millions.	Excent	Per	Share)

	Third Quarter		First Nine Months	
	2000	1999	2000	1999
Net Income (Loss) Before Special Items:				
Amount	\$ 6.4	\$ (12.3)	\$ 10.5	\$ (4.6)
Per Share	.61	(1.10)	1.00	(.41)
Special Items:		, í		
Amount	(.1)	1.6	3.3	4.4
Per Share	(.01)	.14	.31	.39
Net Income (Loss):	· ´			
Amount	\$ 6.3	\$ (10.7)	\$ 13.8	\$ (.2)
Per Share	.60	(.96)	1.31	(.02)

Third quarter 2000 net income before special items was \$18.7 million higher than the comparable 1999 period before specials. Included in third quarter 1999 cost of goods sold and operating expenses were approximately \$25 million (pre-tax) of fixed costs related to production curtailments.

## **Table of Contents**

• Sales margin was breakeven for the first nine months of 2000 compared to a negative margin of \$21.2 million in the comparable 1999 period, summarized as follows:

		(In Millions)		
	Nine Months		Increase (	Decrease)
	2000	1999	Amount	Percent
Sales (Tons)	7.8	5.0	2.8	56%
Revenue from product sales and services Cost of goods sold and operating	\$269.6	\$176.7	\$ 92.9	52.6%
expenses	269.6	197.9*	71.7	36.2%
Sales margin (loss)	\$	\$ (21.2)	\$ 21.2	N/M

<sup>\*</sup>Excludes \$6.8 million favorable adjustments mainly for prior years' tax credits (special item).

Product sales and services in 2000 primarily reflected higher volume. Included in 1999 cost was approximately \$25 million of fixed costs related to production curtailments. Excluding the effect of the 1999 curtailments, operating costs in 2000 were higher primarily due to higher natural gas and diesel fuel costs, and operating difficulties at the Empire and Wabush mines.

- Royalty and management fee revenue, including amounts paid by the Company as a participant in the mining ventures, increased by \$6.6 million reflecting the impact of increased volume in 2000 versus 1999.
- Partially offset by higher equity losses from Cliffs and Associates Limited ("CAL") reflecting ongoing difficulties in starting the hot briquetted iron ("HBI") plant in Trinidad. Equity losses from CAL in the first nine months of 2000 were \$11.0 million, an increase of \$5.2 million from 1999.

In 1999, the Company lost more than one million tons of iron ore pellet sales to Rouge Industries as a result of the extended shutdown of two blast furnaces following a tragic explosion at the power plant that supplies Rouge. As a result, the Company has a business interruption insurance claim for \$18.3 million. The Company recorded a pre-tax recovery on the claim of \$15.3 million (\$9.9 million after-tax) through September 30, 2000 based on negotiations with the insurance adjuster. The Company continues to pursue the balance of the claim, but given the complexity of the insurance issues, any additional amounts will not be recorded until outstanding issues are satisfactorily resolved. Proceeds of \$14.0 million have been received through September 30, 2000.

The Company received 842,000 shares of LTV Corporation ("LTV") common stock, as a creditor in the 1993 reorganization of LTV. The shares were originally valued at \$11.5 million, or \$13.65 per share, when acquired. The investment has been reclassified to "trading" and accordingly changes in market value are recognized in earnings as they occur. Through September 30, 2000, the Company has recognized a cumulative reduction to 2000 earnings of \$10.2 million pre-tax (\$6.6 million after-tax)

ç

#### **Table of Contents**

related to the investment writedown. In August 2000, the Company commenced a program to reduce its investment in the LTV common stock and through September 30, has sold 270,000 shares.

#### CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY

At September 30, 2000, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of \$49.6 million compared to \$33.1 million at the same time last year and \$67.6 million at December 31, 1999. Since December 31, 1999, cash and cash equivalents decreased \$18.0 million, primarily due to increased operating assets and liabilities, \$24.8 million, capital and project expenditures, \$20.3 million, dividends, \$11.9 million, and repurchases of common shares, \$11.8 million, partially offset by cash flow from operations, \$50.8 million. The \$24.8 million increase in operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to higher pellet inventory, \$36.0 million, partly offset by lower trade accounts receivable, \$13.8 million.

On April 7, 2000, the Company received approximately \$5.3 million resulting from the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company ("MetLife")

conversion from a mutual life insurance company to a stock life insurance company. Due to the complexities of the Company's policies with MetLife, including coverage for employees of both current and former managed operations, the Company engaged an actuarial firm to independently develop an appropriate allocation method. As a result, it was determined that the majority of the proceeds are allocable to current and former managed operations. The Company recorded \$.9 million as other income in the third quarter.

# **NORTH AMERICAN IRON ORE**

Iron ore pellet production at the Company's managed mines in the third quarter of 2000 was 10.6 million tons, up from 6.8 million tons in 1999 primarily due to production curtailments that commenced in the third quarter of 1999. First nine months production was 31.2 million tons, up from 26.9 million tons in 1999. The Company's share of 2000 production of 3.0 million tons in the third quarter and 8.8 million tons for the first nine months of 2000 was 1.6 million tons and 2.0 million tons higher than third quarter and first nine months of 1999, respectively.

Pellet sales in the third quarter of 2000 were 3.7 million tons compared to 2.3 million tons in 1999. Pellet sales for the first nine months of 2000 were 7.8 million tons, an increase of 2.8 million tons from the 5.0 million tons sold in the first nine months of 1999, largely due to improved markets and the return of customer blast furnace operations that were out of operation for most of 1999.

Declining fundamentals in the North American Steel Industry have resulted in a reduction in 2000 iron ore pellet production on behalf of certain steel company partners and lower pellet sales in the fourth quarter. Weak steel order books have caused a number of the Company's steel company partners and customers to idle or slowdown their iron and steel making operations. While production remains subject to change, the six mines managed by the Company are currently scheduled to produce 41.3 million tons in 2000, (Company share 11.8 million tons). The Company's full year iron ore

10

#### **Table of Contents**

pellet sales are expected to total between 11.0 and 11.3 million tons, resulting in projected year-end inventory exceeding last years 1.4 million ton inventory by about 1.0 million tons. The higher inventory will be required to meet sales commitments in future years.

In May, 2000, LTV announced its intention to close its wholly-owned LTV Steel Mining Company ("LTVSMC") in mid year 2001. The Company is the manager of LTVSMC. In a related announcement, the Company reported that it had signed a long-term agreement to supply LTV with the majority of the iron ore it will need to purchase as a result of the intended closing of LTVSMC. The sales agreement will make the Company the principal supplier of iron ore pellets purchased by LTV for a 10-year period beginning in 2000. Sales to LTV are expected to be modest in 2000 and to increase to 1 million to 2 million tons in 2001. The Company's sales to LTV will account for the majority of LTV's purchase requirements over the remainder of the contract term. Sales over the 10-year contract term are expected to total more than 50 million tons based on LTV's current requirements and should ensure that the Company will fully operate its existing 11.8 million tons sales capacity over the term of the contract. Additionally, the Company may increase its sales capacity. LTV will continue to be a 25 percent owner of the Company's managed Empire Mine in Michigan.

LTV has agreed not to sell the LTVSMC assets until the Company has the opportunity to investigate alternative uses for the property. This investigation has commenced and could take up to the end of the year to complete. The Company does not envision producing pellets, but will determine if the facilities can have a role in either alternative iron or other mineral production.

Capital expenditures at the six North American mining ventures and supporting operations are expected to total \$49 million in 2000, with the Company's share of \$24 million expected to be funded from current operations. Capital additions and replacements, including the value of leased equipment, are expected to total \$105 million in 2000 (Company share \$37 million) for North American operations.

In April, 2000, Northshore Mining Company, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, received a notice of violation with respect to fly ash storage and disposal from the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency alleging violations of Northshore's 1996 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination/State Disposal System Permit. While the outcome of the alleged violations is uncertain, the Company does not expect compliance will have a material impact on the Company's operations or consolidated financial statements.

# **CLIFFS AND ASSOCIATES LIMITED**

On May 15, 2000, start-up activities at the CAL plant in Trinidad and Tobago were temporarily suspended in order to evaluate plant reliability and make modifications to portions of the plant. The entire plant was restarted on July 1 to test the functionality and reliability of the initial modifications and to gain additional operating experience. Results of the five-week plant test were positive. Although commercial grade briquettes were produced, replacing the discharge system is necessary to improve material flow

11

# **Table of Contents**

and obtain consistent feed of hot reduced iron to the briquetting machines. The redesign and replacement of the discharge system is targeted for completion in the first quarter of 2001. Plant startup is also expected in the first quarter of 2001 with production expected to be about 250,000 tons for the year.

On August 28, 2000, the Company announced that a subsidiary of the Company and Lurgi Metallurgie GmbH ("Lurgi") intend to complete the modifications to the plant and have entered into a non-binding letter of intent to purchase LTV's interest in CAL. Subject to final agreement, the Company and Lurgi together will pay LTV \$2 million for LTV's 46.5 percent interest in CAL. LTV can receive additional payments, beginning in 2001 through 2020, that could total \$30 million dependent on CAL's production and sales volume and price realizations. As part of the purchase agreement, CAL will have the right to supply a portion of LTV's HBI requirements for five years on market terms. LTV will be indemnified for liabilities arising from CAL. Purchase of the LTV interest is expected to be completed in the fourth quarter.

It is estimated that an additional \$45 million (of which \$3 million has already been advanced) will be required for CAL to attain sustained production and generate positive cash flow, consisting of capital expenditures of \$15 million, working capital of \$15 million and cash start-up costs of \$15 million. If the full \$45 million is required, the Company will have contributed an additional \$33 million and own between 82 and 83 percent of CAL, with Lurgi owning the balance. In the third quarter, the Company advanced \$3.8 million to CAL, with \$2.6 million occurring subsequent to the Company/Lurgi decision to complete the plant without LTV. The Company's share of CAL's fourth quarter losses are expected to approximate \$6 million.

The plant's initial design capacity is 500,000 tons annually, and an operating rate in excess of design is believed possible. Expansion of the CAL operation will be evaluated when the plant demonstrates the capability to operate at its design rate for a sustained period, and there is evidence of market expansion.

The Company projects that CAL will reach its design production rate of 500,000 tons per year in mid-2002. When the plant is operating at design level, the cash costs of CIRCAL<sup>TM</sup> briquettes delivered to a Gulf of Mexico port are expected to total \$90 to \$95 per ton. With depreciation of about \$10 per ton, total costs should approximate \$100 to \$105 per ton. HBI prices delivered to a Gulf of Mexico port have recently been slightly below \$100 per ton, and even at this depressed level, CAL would be cash positive when the plant is operating at or near its design rate. Over the long-term, the Company expects price realization to approximate \$125 per ton at the Gulf. Based on these revenue and cost assumptions, CAL would contribute \$12 to \$13 million to the Company's pre-tax cash flow and \$5 to \$6 million to the Company's net income.

## **CAPITALIZATION**

Long-term debt of the Company consists of \$70.0 million of senior unsecured notes, which bear a fixed interest rate of 7.0 percent and are scheduled to be repaid on December 15, 2005. Additionally, the Company has a \$100 million revolving credit agreement. No borrowings are outstanding under this agreement, which expires on

12

# **Table of Contents**

May 31, 2003. The Company was in compliance as of September 30 with all financial covenants and restrictions of the agreements.

The fair value of the Company's long-term debt (which had a carrying value of \$70.0 million) at September 30, 2000, was \$66.7 million based on a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing estimated current borrowing rates.

In July, 2000, the Company announced an expansion to its stock repurchase program. The 1.0 million share increase in the program raises the total authorization to 3.0 million shares. To date, the Company has purchased 2,177,575 shares (472,100 shares in 2000), at a total cost of \$75.7 million (\$11.8 million in 2000).

Following is a summary of common shares outstanding:

	2000	1999	1998
March 31	10,714,796	11,209,734	11,344,605
June 30	10,502,367	11,211,376	11,322,047
September 30	10,292,356	11,053,349	11,148,453
December 31		10,647,199	11,150,654

# STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

The Company is seeking additional investment opportunities, domestically and internationally, to broaden its scope as a supplier of iron units to the steel industry, including investments in iron ore mines or ferrous metallics facilities. In the normal course of business, the Company examines opportunities to increase profitability and strengthen its business position by evaluating various investment opportunities consistent with its business strategy. In the event of any future acquisitions or joint venture opportunities, the Company may consider using available liquidity, incurring additional indebtedness, project financing, or other sources of funding to make investments.

# FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The preceding discussion and analysis of the Company's operations, financial performance and results, as well as material included elsewhere in this report, includes statements not limited to historical facts. Such statements are "forward-looking statements" (as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995) that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause future results to differ materially

from expected results. Such statements are based on management's beliefs and assumptions made on information currently available to it. Factors that could cause the Company's actual results to be materially different from the Company's expectations include the following:

• Displacement of iron production by North American integrated steel producers due to electric furnace production or imports of semi-finished steel or pig iron;

13

#### **Table of Contents**

- Loss of major iron ore sales contracts;
- Changes in the financial condition of the Company's partners and/or customers;
- Substantial changes in imports of steel, iron ore, or ferrous metallic products;
- Displacement of steel by competing materials;
- Changes in the market value of steel, iron ore or ferrous metallics;
- Changes due to CAL's ability to forecast revenue rates, costs and to achieve design production;
- Domestic or international economic and political conditions;
- Major equipment failure, availability, and magnitude and duration of repairs;
- Unanticipated geological conditions or ore processing changes;
- Process difficulties, including the failure of new technology to perform as anticipated;
- Availability and cost of the key components of production (e.g., labor, electric power, fuel, water);
- Weather conditions (e.g., extreme winter weather, availability of process water due to drought);
- Changes in tax laws;
- Changes in laws, regulations or enforcement practices governing remediation requirements at existing environmental sites, remediation technology advancements, the impact of inflation, the identification and financial condition of other responsible parties, and the number of sites and the extent of remediation activity;
- Changes in laws, regulations or enforcement practices governing compliance with safety, health and environmental standards at operating locations; and,
- Accounting principle or policy changes by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the Securities and Exchange Commission.

14

## **Table of Contents**

# PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

# Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

On September 28, 2000, pursuant to the Cleveland-Cliffs Inc Voluntary Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan ("VNQDC Plan"), the Company sold 21,364 shares of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, of Cleveland-Cliffs Inc ("Common Shares") for cash to the Trustee of the Trust maintained under the VNQDC Plan. This sale of Common Shares was made in reliance on Rule 506 of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to elections made by three executive officers under the VNQDC Plan. The aggregate consideration received by the Company was \$489,983.34.

- (a) List of Exhibits Refer to Exhibit Index on page 16.
- (b) During the quarter for which this 10-Q Report is filed, the Company filed Current Reports on Form 8-K, dated July 11, 2000 and August 28, 2000, both covering information reported under *Item 5*. *Other Events*. There were no financial statements filed as part of the Current Reports on Form 8-K.

# **SIGNATURE**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC

Date October 26, 2000

By /s/ C. B. Bezik

C. B. Bezik Senior Vice President-Finance and Principal Financial Officer

15

## **Table of Contents**

## EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number	Exhibit	
27	Consolidated Financial Data Schedule submitted for Securities and Exchange Commission information only	
99(a)	Cleveland-Cliffs Inc News Release published on October 25, 2000, with respect to 2000 third quarter earnings	Filed Herewith

# <ARTICLE> 5

<LEGEND>

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

</LEGEND>

<CIK> 0000764065

<NAME> CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC

<MULTIPLIER> 1,000,000

<s></s>	<c></c>	
<period-type></period-type>	9-MOS	
<fiscal-year-end></fiscal-year-end>		DEC-31-2000
<period-start></period-start>		JAN-01-2000
<period-end></period-end>		SEP-30-2000
<cash></cash>		50
<securities></securities>		0
<receivables></receivables>		72
<allowances></allowances>		2
<inventory></inventory>		89
<current-assets></current-assets>		231
<pp&e></pp&e>		229
<depreciation></depreciation>		79
<total-assets></total-assets>		686
<current-liabilities></current-liabilities>		85
<bonds></bonds>		0
<preferred-mandatory></preferred-mandatory>		0
<preferred></preferred>		0
<common></common>		17
<other-se></other-se>		388
<total-liability-and-equity></total-liability-and-equity>		686
<sales></sales>		270
<total-revenues></total-revenues>		332
<cgs></cgs>		270
<total-costs></total-costs>		294
<other-expenses></other-expenses>		16
<loss-provision></loss-provision>		0
<interest-expense></interest-expense>		4
<income-pretax></income-pretax>		18
<income-tax></income-tax>		4
<pre><income-continuing></income-continuing></pre>		14
<discontinued></discontinued>		0
<extraordinary></extraordinary>		0
<changes></changes>		0
<net-income></net-income>		14
<eps-basic></eps-basic>		1.31
<eps-diluted></eps-diluted>		1.31

</TABLE>

# CLEVELAND-CLIFFS REPORTS THIRD QUARTER 2000 EARNINGS

Cleveland, OH — October 25, 2000 — Cleveland-Cliffs Inc (NYSE:CLF) today reported third quarter net income before special items of \$6.4 million, or \$.61 per diluted share. In the third quarter of 1999, Cliffs recorded a net loss before special items of \$12.3 million, or a \$1.10 per diluted share. In the first nine months of 2000, the Company recorded net income before special items of \$10.5 million, or \$1.00 per diluted share, which compared with a net loss before special items of \$4.6 million, or \$.41 per diluted share in 1999.

Following is a summary of results:

(In Millions,	Except	Per	Share)	)
---------------	--------	-----	--------	---

Third Quarter		First Nine Months	
2000	1999	2000	1999
\$ 6.4	\$ (12.3)	\$ 10.5	\$ (4.6)
.61	(1.10)	1.00	(.41)
(.1)	1.6	3.3	4.4
(.01)	.14	.31	.39
6.3	(10.7)	13.8	(.2)
.60	(.96)	1.31	(.02)
	\$ 6.4 .61 (.1) (.01) 6.3	\$ 6.4 \$ (12.3) .61 (1.10) (.1) 1.6 (.01) .14 6.3 (10.7)	2000     1999     2000       \$ 6.4     \$ (12.3)     \$ 10.5       .61     (1.10)     1.00       (.1)     1.6     3.3       (.01)     .14     .31       6.3     (10.7)     13.8

Before special items, third quarter results were \$18.7 million above 1999, and nine month results were \$15.1 million ahead of 1999. The improved results were primarily due to the major production curtailments undertaken in the third quarter of 1999 to reduce pellet inventories, and higher pellet sales volume in 2000. Partly offsetting were higher equity losses in 2000 from Cliffs and Associates Limited, the reduced iron venture in Trinidad and Tobago.

Iron ore pellet sales in the third quarter of 2000 were 3.7 million tons compared with 2.3 million tons in 1999. Sales for the first nine months were 7.8 million tons in 2000 versus 5.0 million tons in 1999. The unusually low shipment volume in 1999 was largely due to blast furnace outages at Rouge Industries and Weirton Steel.

1

Iron ore pellet production at Cliffs-managed mines was 10.6 million tons in the third quarter of 2000 versus 6.8 million tons in the third quarter of 1999. Nine-month production was 31.2 million tons, up from 26.9 million tons in 1999. Following is a summary of production tonnages by mine for the third quarter and first nine months of 2000 and 1999:

(Tons	in	Millions
( I UIIS	111	14111110113

Third Qu	Third Quarter		First Nine Months	
2000	1999	2000	1999	
1.9	1.4	5.7	5.4	
2.2	1.0	6.2	4.8	
2.0	1.8	5.8	5.3	
1.0	.8	3.2	3.0	
2.0	.8	5.8	4.6	
1.5	1.0	4.5	3.8	
10.6	6.8	31.2	26.9	

With the exception of LTV Steel Mining, all mines curtailed production in the third quarter of 1999.

# **Special Items in 2000**

Cliffs lost more than one million tons of iron ore pellet sales to Rouge Industries in 1999 as a result of the extended shutdown of two blast furnaces following an explosion at the power plant that supplies Rouge. As a result, Cliffs has recorded a pre-tax recovery of \$15.3 million on its business interruption insurance claim (\$15.0 million in the second quarter and \$.3 million in the third quarter) based on negotiations with the insurance adjuster. The after-tax recovery was \$.1 million in the third quarter and \$9.9 million in the first nine months. The Company continues to pursue additional recoveries under the claim.

In 1993, Cliffs received 842,000 common shares of LTV Corporation (LTV), as a creditor in the reorganization of LTV. In the second quarter of 2000, Cliffs recorded a \$9.1 million pre-tax charge (\$6.4 million after-tax) to recognize the reduction in the market value of the

2

#### **Special Items in 1999**

The special income included in 1999 results represented favorable after-tax adjustments that mainly related to refunds of prior years' state taxes.

# **Iron Ore**

Weak order books have caused a number of Cliffs' steel company partners and customers to idle or slowdown their iron and steel making operations, which may cause reductions in pellet production at Cliffs-managed mines and is likely to lower Cliffs' pellet sales in the last quarter of 2000.

The six mines managed by Cliffs, which were initially scheduled to produce 42 million tons of pellets in 2000, are now scheduled to produce 41.3 million tons. Cliffs' share of scheduled production is unchanged at 11.8 million tons. While production schedules are still subject to change, following is the current schedule by mine compared with the original plan for the year:

		(Tons in	Millions)	
		Total Mine		fs' are
	Current Schedule	Original Plan	Current Schedule	Original Plan
Empire	7.8	8.4	1.8	1.9
Hibbing	8.2	8.1	1.2	1.2
LTV Steel Mining	7.7	7.4	_	_
Northshore	4.3	4.2	4.3	4.2
Tilden	7.2	7.8	3.1	3.1
Wabush	6.1	6.1	1.4	1.4
Total	41.3	42.0	11.8	11.8

The Tilden Mine production schedule has been reduced due to lower pellet requirements at Algoma Steel Inc., a 45 percent owner of Tilden. Tilden will suspend production for about three weeks in November to accommodate the new production schedule. The lower production level at the Empire Mine is primarily a result of the temporary outage of Empire's primary crushers earlier this year.

Cliffs' iron ore pellet sales, which were previously expected to be 11.5 million tons for the full year 2000, are now projected to be between 11.0 and 11.3 million tons. Year-end pellet inventory is projected to be between 2.4 and 2.6 million tons versus 1.4 million tons at the beginning of the year. The higher inventory will be required to meet sales commitments in future years.

3

John Brinzo, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, said, "We remain concerned at the high volume of steel imports, including unfairly priced semi-finished steel slabs, that continue to flood into North America. While we are building our iron ore pellet inventory in 2000, we are doing so based on our sales outlook for 2001 and 2002. Our multi-year sales contracts, including our new contract with LTV Corporation, should ensure that Cliffs will fully operate its 11.8 million ton production capacity next year."

# **Cliffs and Associates Limited (CAL)**

As reported on August 28, Cliffs and Lurgi will purchase LTV's interest in CAL and will complete the modifications that are expected to lead to a successful operation of the CAL plant. When the purchase is completed (expected in the fourth quarter), Cliffs and Lurgi together will pay LTV \$2 million. LTV can receive additional payments from CAL, beginning in 2001 through 2020, that could total \$30 million, dependent on CAL's production and sales volumes and price realizations. As part of the purchase agreement, CAL will have the option to supply a portion of LTV's HBI requirements for five years on market terms. LTV will be indemnified for liabilities arising from CAL.

It is estimated that an additional \$45 million (of which \$3 million has already been advanced) will be required for CAL to attain sustained production and generate positive cash flow, consisting of capital expenditures of \$15 million, working capital of \$15 million and cash start-up costs of \$15 million. If the full \$45 million is required, Cliffs will have contributed an additional \$33 million and own between 82 and 83 percent of CAL, with Lurgi owning the balance. In the third quarter, Cliffs advanced \$3.8 million to CAL, with \$2.6 million occurring subsequent to the Cliffs/Lurgi decision to complete the plant without LTV.

Cliffs' 46.5 percent share of CAL losses was \$3.9 million in the third quarter and \$11.0 million year-to-date. With the anticipated increase

in ownership in the fourth quarter, Cliffs' share of CAL's fourth quarter losses should approximate \$6 million.

The re-design and replacement of the discharge system is targeted for completion in the first quarter of 2001. Plant startup is also expected in the first quarter of 2001 with production expected to be about 250,000 tons for the year. The plant's initial design capacity is 500,000 tons annually, and an operating rate in excess of design is believed possible. Expansion of the CAL operation will be evaluated when the plant demonstrates the capability to operate at its design rate for a sustained period, and there is evidence of market expansion.

Brinzo said "Based on the positive results of the plant test in July and independent reviews of the project, we expect CAL will achieve its operating objectives in the second half of 2001. We project that CAL will reach its design production rate of 500,000 tons per year in mid-2002. When the plant is

4

operating at design level, the cash costs of CIRCAL<sup>TM</sup> briquettes delivered to a Gulf of Mexico port are expected to total \$90 to \$95 per ton. With depreciation of about \$10 per ton, total costs should approximate \$100 to \$105 per ton. HBI prices delivered to a Gulf of Mexico port have recently been slightly below \$100 per ton, and even at this depressed level, CAL would be cash positive when the plant is operating at or near its design rate. Over the long-term, we would expect our price realization to approximate \$125 per ton at the Gulf. With these revenue and cost assumptions, CAL would contribute \$12 to \$13 million to Cliffs' pre-tax cash flow and \$5 to \$6 million to Cliffs' net income. CIRCAL<sup>TM</sup> briquettes have excellent long-term potential in the market place. In today's higher energy cost environment, we believe CAL to be exceptionally well positioned with low cost, stable gas prices in Trinidad."

#### Outlook

John Brinzo said, "Weak fundamentals in the North American steel industry are expected to cause Cliffs' fourth quarter earnings to be less than the *First Call* consensus estimate of \$.35 per diluted share. While it is early for projections on year 2001, we do expect a significant improvement in 2001 results due to higher pellet sales volume and a substantial reduction in losses from CAL. We remain committed to enhancing shareholder value, and in the first nine months of 2000 we repurchased 472,000 shares. The total payout for share repurchases and dividends in the first three quarters totaled \$23.7 million."

\* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

Cleveland-Cliffs is the largest supplier of iron ore products to the North American steel industry and is developing a significant ferrous metallics business. Subsidiaries of the Company manage six iron ore mines in North America and hold equity interests in five of the mines. Cliffs has a major iron ore reserve position in the United States and is a substantial iron ore merchant. References in this news release to "Cliffs" and "Company" include subsidiaries and affiliates as appropriate in the context.

This news release contains predictive statements that are intended to be made as "forward-looking" within the safe harbor protections of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Although the Company believes that its forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from such statements for a variety of factors; such as displacement of iron production by North American integrated steel producers due to electric furnace production or imports of semi-finished steel or pig iron; changes in the financial condition of the Company's partners and/or customers; changes in imports of steel, iron ore, or ferrous metallic products; changes due to CAL's ability to forecast revenue rates, costs and production levels; domestic or international economic and political conditions; major equipment failure,

5

availability and magnitude and duration of repairs; process difficulties, including the failure of new technology to perform as anticipated; and availability and cost of key components of production (e.g., labor, electric power, fuel, water).

Reference is made to the detailed explanation of the many factors and risks that may cause such predictive statements to turn out differently as set forth in the Company's 1999 Annual Report and Reports on Form 10-K and 10-Q and previous news releases filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which are available on Cliffs' web site. The information contained in this document speaks as of the date of this news release and may be superceded by subsequent events.

Cliffs will host its third quarter 2000 earnings conference call tomorrow, October 26, at 10:00 a.m. EDT. The call will be broadcast live on Cliffs' web site at <a href="http://www.cleveland-cliffs.com">http://www.cleveland-cliffs.com</a>. A replay of the call will be available on the web site for 30 days.

#### Contacts:

Media: David L. Gardner, (216) 694-5407

Financial Community: Fred B. Rice, (800) 214-0739 or (216) 694-5459

News releases and other information on the Company are available on the Internet at http://www.cleveland-cliffs.com

# **CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC**

# STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

		e Months eptember 30,		Months eptember 30,
(In Millions Except Per Share Amounts)	2000	1999	2000	1999
REVENUES				
Product sales and services	\$ 129.2	\$ 80.2	\$ 269.6	\$ 176.7
Royalties and management fees	15.0	10.3	39.6	33.0
Total Operating Revenues	144.2	90.5	309.2	209.7
Insurance recovery	.3		15.3	
Interest income	1.2	.5	3.4	2.4
Other income	1.9	.8	4.0	2.4
TOTAL REVENUES COSTS AND EXPENSES	147.6	91.8	331.9	214.5
Cost of goods sold and operating expenses	127.4	100.5	269.6	191.1
Administrative, selling and general expenses	5.9	3.3	14.2	11.2
Write-down of common stock investment	1.1		10.2	
Equity loss in Cliffs and Associates Limited	3.9	2.4	11.0	5.8
Interest expense	1.2	1.2	3.7	2.4
Other expenses	1.3	.9	5.1	6.2
TOTAL COSTS AND EXPENSES	140.8	108.3	313.8	216.7
NCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES	6.8	(16.5)	18.1	(2.2)
NCOME TAXES (CREDIT)	.5	(5.8)	4.3	(2.0)
NET INCOME (LOSS)	\$ 6.3	\$ (10.7)	\$ 13.8	\$ (.2)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE				
Basic	\$ .60	\$ (.96)	\$ 1.31	\$ (.02)
Diluted	\$ .60	\$ (.96)	\$ 1.31	\$ (.02)
VERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES		. , ,	•	,
Basic	10.4	11.1	10.5	11.2
Diluted	10.4	11.1	10.5	11.2

# **CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC**

# STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Months Ended September 30,	
(In Millions, Brackets Indicate Decrease in Cash)	2000	1999	2000	1999
OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Net income (loss)	\$ 6.3	\$ (10.7)	\$ 13.8	\$ (.2)
Depreciation and amortization:		` '		` ´
Consolidated	3.3	2.8	9.6	7.2
Share of associated companies	3.2	2.6	9.4	9.1
Equity loss in Cliffs and Associates Limited	3.9	2.4	11.0	5.8
Write-down of common stock investment	1.1		10.2	
Deferred income taxes	(.9)	(1.1)	(4.1)	(1.1)
Other	(.9)	(2.1)	.9	(3.7)
Total before changes in operating assets and liabilities	16.0	(6.1)	50.8	17.1
Changes in operating assets and liabilities	28.0	32.3	(24.8)	(71.7)
Net cash from (used by) operating activities INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchase of property, plant and equipment:	44.0	26.2	26.0	(54.6)
Consolidated	(2.7)	(1.9)	(5.4)	(12.2)
Share of associated companies	(1.7)	(2.0)	(4.1)	(4.0)
Investment and advances in Cliffs and Associates Limited	(3.8)	(3.5)	(11.3)	(8.6)
Other	.5	(3.3)	.5	(0.0)
Net cash used by investing activities FINANCING ACTIVITIES	(7.7)	(7.4)	(20.3)	(24.8)
Dividends	(3.9)	(4.2)	(11.9)	(12.6)
Repurchases of Common Shares	(6.3)	(5.2)	(11.8)	(5.2)
Net cash used by financing activities	(10.2)	(9.4)	(23.7)	(17.8)

# **CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC**

# STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

	(In Millions)		
	Sept. 30, 2000	Dec. 31, 1999	Sept. 30, 1999
<u>ASSETS</u>			
CURRENT ASSETS	0.40.6	0.67.6	Ф. 22.1
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 49.6	\$ 67.6	\$ 33.1
Accounts receivable — net Inventories	71.8 88.6	82.6 52.6	47.3 126.6
Other	21.1	14.3	16.4
Culter			
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	231.1	217.1	223.4
PROPERTIES — NET	150.1	153.9	154.1
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES	224.7	233.4	229.2
OTHER ASSETS	80.2	75.3	82.2
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 686.1	\$ 679.7	\$ 688.9
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY			
CURRENT LIABILITIES	\$ 85.5	\$ 73.7	\$ 70.7
LONG-TERM DEBT	70.0	70.0	70.0
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITIES OTHER LIABILITIES	67.1 58.8	68.1 60.6	65.7
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	38.8 404.7	407.3	63.8 418.7
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITI	404.7	407.3	410.7
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	\$ 686.1	\$ 679.7	\$ 688.9
	_	_	

# **Unaudited Financial Statements**

In management's opinion, the unaudited financial statements present fairly the company's financial position and results. All supplementary information required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements has not been included. For further information, please refer to the Company's latest Annual Report.